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» AGREEMENTS

Parties’ Marital Settlement Agreement Vacated
because of both Procedural and Substantive
Unconscionability.

IN RE MARRIAGE OF DEBORAH DEWEY,
Petitioner-Appellee, and BRYAN DEWEY,
Respondent-Appellant. May 14, 2009, I1l. App.Ct.
3rd District, No. 3-07-0599, Daniel J. Bute, trial
judge. Rule 23.

On December 18, 2006, the trial court entered a
judgment, dissolving the marriage between
Deborah and Bryan Dewey and incorporating the
parties’ marital settlement agreement. On January
10, 2007, Deborah filed a motion to vacate the
judgment for dissolution of marriage, alleging that
the judgment was unconscionable and procured by
fraud, coercion, and intimidation. The trial court
granted the motion to vacate, and Bryan appealed.
The appellate court affirmed.

1.) Deborah testified that she was 53 years old
and that she had a high school education. She
stayed at home and raised the parties’ son until
about three years ago, when she began a part-time
job at a factory. She worked four hours a day, five
days a week and made $8 per hour. She testified
that she made $5,813 in 2005. Deborah testified
that Bryan was a union electrician for about 25
years, and the parties’ 2005 tax return showed that
he made about $50,000.

Deborah testified that on November 20, 20006,
Bryan told her that he wanted a divorce. She claimed
that Bryan told her that she had to leave the marital
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home and that he started to pack her belongings.
She also claimed that Bryan told her that she did not
need a lawyer. Deborah stated that she did not want
a divorce and that she felt terrible about it. She
claimed that she lost 25 pounds and that she could
not think or concentrate during the divorce.

Deborah testified that on December 2, 2006,
Bryan drove her to Gearhart’s office to sign docu-
ments related to the divorce. Deborah testified that
the documents were prepared before she arrived
and that she had no input as to their content. She
testified that Gearhart told her that she did not
need an attorney because it would be a waste of
money. Gearhart told Deborah that she could rep-
resent both Deborah and Bryan if Deborah did not
get a lawyer. Deborah stated that the documents
were explained to her, but she could not concen-
trate. She signed the documents because Bryan
repeatedly told her to do so. She did not realize that
she was the petitioner in the divorce proceedings.

Deborah testified that she and Bryan returned
to Gearhart’s office on December 12, 2006. She
stated that she signed some more documents that
were similar to the documents she signed on
December 2. She still did not realize that she was
the petitioner in the divorce proceedings. She testi-
fied that her “mind was just blank” when she signed
the documents. because she was scared. She first
realized that she would not be represented by an
attorney when she came to court and Gearhart said
she was representing Bryan.

Deborah testified that she had been living with
her son since December 30, 2006, and that her son
paid most of the bills. Contrary to the judgment for
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dissolution of marriage, she testified that she did
not make enough money to support herself. She
testified that she saw a doctor in January 2007, and
he prescribed antidepressants, which she had been
taking ever since.

On cross-examination, Deborah testified that
she called Gearhart prior to their meeting on
December 2, 2006, and she told Gearhart that she
was going to “seek an attorney.” She also admitted
that she signed a waiver at Gearhart’s office on
December 2. The waiver indicated that Gearhart
represented Bryan, that Gearhart recommended
that Deborah secure her own attorney, and that
Deborah agreed to participate in the divorce and
property settlement agreement by her own choice.
Deborah admitted that she also signed the petition
for dissolution of marriage and the judgment for
dissolution of marriage. The petition indicated that
Deborah had been given the opportunity to seek
the aid of an attorney but had chosen not to do so.
The judgment indicated that Deborah had been
given the opportunity to seek an attorney but
added that Gearhart was Bryan’s attorney.
Deborah testified that she did not read the docu-
ments because she was intimidated and threatened
by Bryan into signing the documents. She stated
that Bryan had poked her in the chest and told her
to sign the documents when they were at home.

2.) Clifford Andersen, Deborah’s brother-in-
law, testified that Deborah came to his house a few
days after December 18, 2006, and that was when he
and his wife learned that Deborah and Bryan had
divorced. Andersen testified that Deborah appeared
to be emotional and not in control of herself.

3.) Bryan testified that he and Deborah had a
meeting with Gearhart on December 2, 2006, and
that, prior to the meeting, Deborah read and
signed the waiver. Bryan testified that Gearhart
prepared documents for that meeting according to
his directions, which were to divide the parties’
assets equally. At the meeting, the parties discussed
maintenance and the division of assets and liabili-
ties. Bryan testified that Gearhart told Deborah
that she could receive $1,000 per month in mainte-
nance for 12 years because that time period
equaled one-half of the marriage. Deborah did not
accept the offer because she did not want to hurt
Bryan anymore than she had. Instead, Deborah
agreed to maintenance of $500 per month for six
months or until the marital home was sold because
she could live off of the proceeds from the sale of
the home. Bryan testified that Gearhart explained
the documents to both Deborah and him and that
each of them could have asked Gearhart questions
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about the documents. He noted that Deborah
asked about the value of his truck as well as her
dental work and that Deborah had no reaction
when Gearhart told her that she would be the peti-
tioner. Bryan testified that the documents were
signed on December 12, 2006.

4.) Christine Novak, a licensed clinical profes-
sional counselor, testified as an expert over Bryan’s
objection. She testified that she began counseling
Deborah on January 13, 2007, after Deborah
received a referral from her doctor, who had pre-
scribed antidepressants. The counseling related to
Deborah’s depression after the divorce. Symptoms
of Deborah’s depression included fatigue, feelings
of worthlessness, and a diminished ability to con-
centrate. Novak, based on her counseling sessions
with Deborah, opined that Deborah was over-
whelmed and not processing information effec-
tively after Bryan told her that he wanted a divorce.
She further opined that a person in Deborah’s
mental state would not be able to negotiate.

5.) Gearhart believed that Deborah understood
that Gearhart represented Bryan because Deborah
read and signed the waiver.

After Deborah signed the waiver, Gearhart,
Deborah, and Bryan discussed the parties’ assets
and the issue of maintenance. Gearhart testified
that Deborah actively participated in the discus-
sion. Deborah supplied most of the information
about the parties’ assets because she handled most
of the parties’ finances. Gearhart testified that
Deborah raised the issue of maintenance and that
Gearhart asked her what she needed. Deborah did
not know, so she asked what Gearhart would offer.
Gearhart testified:

“I said, well, here’s the deal. Any attorney
in town is going to tell you that you should be
getting maintenance for at least half the life of
your marriage. And it depends on how much
he makes and how much you make and you’ve
got to figure that out what you need to live.
And she says, well, isn’t he paying all the bills?
It’s like she was excited all of a sudden think-
ing that he wasn’t going to pay all the bills. I
said, no, he’s already agreed. He’s going to
pay every marital debt there is. He’s paying it
out of his pocket every week. Every month.
Not you. And she said, then fine. I need five
hundred ($500.) dollars. That, that’s what I
need. And I said, well how about a thousand
($1,000.) dollars, think—, and, and, I'm sure I
sounded like a lunatic, but, I'm, I'm thinking,
what five hundred ($500.) dollars. That, that
didn’t sound like quite enough to me. And she
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says, no, I know what I got to pay and I don’t
want to hurt the man anymore.”

Gearhart testified that after the December 2,
2006, meeting, she started to prepare legal docu-
ments. She stated that she prepared the petition for
dissolution of marriage, naming Deborah as the
petitioner because Deborah did not want to be
accused of mental cruelty. She also prepared
Bryan’s response to the petition and the judgment
for dissolution of marriage. Gearhart testified that
the petition and the judgment explained that
Deborah did not have an attorney.

Gearhart testified that Bryan and Deborah
returned to her office on December 12, 2006, to sign
the documents. Prior to signing the documents,
Gearhart had to change the amount of money that
Deborah would receive for Bryan’s truck based on
Deborah’s valuation of the truck. Gearhart
testified that Deborah was articulate and coherent
during the meeting. She noted that Deborah read
through the entire document each time a change
was made. She testified that Bryan and Deborah
signed the documents before leaving her office.

Gearhart testified that she, Deborah, and
Bryan met at the courthouse for the prove-up hear-
ing on December 18, 2006.

Gearhart called Deborah as a witness, and
Deborah confirmed every part of the judgment of
dissolution. Gearhart stated that Deborah seemed
normal and calm and that it did not appear that
Bryan had attempted to intimidate her.

On cross-examination and questioning by the
trial court, Gearhart testified that she would not
have recommended to Deborah to take $500 per
month as maintenance for six months because she
would have sought the best deal for her client.

6.) The trial court found that the conditions
under which the agreement was made raised seri-
ous’ questions about its validity. Specifically, the
trial court did not understand why, based on
Gearhart’s testimony, Deborah refused mainte-
nance of $1,000 per month for 12 years to accept
maintenance of $500 per month for six months.
The trial court explained Deborah’s refusal from
the evidence that she suffered from depression at
the time of the divorce and Novak’s testimony that
Deborah would not be able to negotiate in her
state. The trial court also found that the economic
circumstances of the parties resulting from the
agreement were unconscionable because the terms
clearly favored Bryan.

7.) When a party seeks to vacate a property set-
tlement incorporated into a judgment of dissolu-
tion of marriage, all presumptions are in favor of
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the validity of the settlement.” In re Marriage of
Bielawski, 328 Ill. App. 3d 243, 251, 764 N.E.2d
1254, 1261 (2002) 02 IFLR 76.

8.) A marital settlement agreement is uncon-
scionable when there is an absence of meaningful
choice for one of the parties together with contract
terms that are unreasonably favorable to the other
party. The fact that an agreement merely favors
one party over another does not make it uncon-
scionable. To be unconscionable, the agreement
must be totally one-sided and oppressive.

9.) Courts consider two types of uncon-
scionability: (1) procedural unconscionability; and
(2) substantive unconscionability.

Procedural unconscionability refers to some
impropriety during the formation of the contract
that deprives a party of a meaningful choice. Kinkel
v. Cinqular Wireless, LLC, 223 111. 2d 1, 857 N.E.2d
250 (2006).

Factors to consider include the circumstances
surrounding the formation of the contract, such as
the manner the contract was entered into and the
opportunity each party had to understand the
terms of the contract, and the disparity in bargain-
ing power between the drafter and the party claim-
ing unconscionability.

Substantive unconscionability considers the rel-
ative fairness of the contract terms to determine
whether they are so one-sided or oppressive.

10.) The trial court did not err in vacating the
parties’ marital settlement agreement as uncon-
scionable because of both procedural and substan-
tive unconscionability.

11.) The circumstances surrounding the forma-
tion of this contract gave Deborah no meaningful
choice. In less than a month, Bryan decided that he
wanted a divorce, the parties reached a marital set-
tlement agreement, and the parties were divorced.
Although this short time frame alone did not
deprive Deborah of a meaningful choice, the short
time period, together with the fact that Deborah
was not represented by counsel, gave Deborah less
of an opportunity to understand the terms of the
agreement while increasing Bryan’s bargaining
power. See In re Marriage of Steadman, 283 111. App.
3d 703, 670 N.E.2d 1146 (1996) 96 IFLR 212
(declining to find per se unconscionability based on
the number of hours spent negotiating while stress-
ing the significance of arms length negotiation with
the aid of counsel); see also Gibson-Terry, 325 1ll.
App. 3d 317, 758 N.E.2d 459 (finding that a settle-
ment agreement was not hastily arranged over a
lunch break where the parties had been in the trial
court for nearly two years and the parties had been
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engaged in settlement negotiations during that
time). The situation was further exacerbated by
the evidence that Deborah suffered from depres-
sion during the divorce proceedings and that the
depression impaired her ability to process informa-
tion and negotiate effectively.

12.) In addition to the evidence of procedural
unconscionability, the record shows that the mari-
tal settlement agreement was one sided in favor of
Bryan. The maintenance provision of the agree-
ment was unreasonably favorable to Bryan because
it placed Deborah in a much worse economic posi-
tion than she had during the marriage. The agree-
ment stated that Bryan and Deborah were
“employed and capable of providing for their own
care and support” and provided that Deborah
would receive $500 for up to six months. However,
the record showed that Deborah had only worked
for three years after raising the parties’ only child
and that she worked a part-time job, earning less
than $6,000 a year. Meanwhile, Bryan earned over
$50,000 and supplied most of the income during
the parties’ marriage. The maintenance provision,
as Gearhart apparently recognized in her testi-
mony, was not fair to Deborah. The maintenance
provision failed to take into account the discrep-
ancy between Deborah’s future income and the
amount of income that would provide the standard
of living she enjoyed during the marriage. It also
ignored the time Deborah spent raising the parties’
only child instead of pursuing a career. See 750
ILCS 5/504(a) (West 2006)

13.) The unreasonableness of the maintenance
provision was not cured by the fact that the parties
would split the proceeds from the sale of the mari-
tal home. Although Deborah would equally share
in those proceeds, Bryan would receive more
money from the sale of the marital home because
the agreement provided that he would receive his
share of the proceeds from the sale plus a credit for
any payments he made on the home. Effectively,
the agreement allowed Bryan to live in the marital
home for free while he attempted to sell it and
forced Deborah to move in with her son. The
agreement was substantively unconscionable as it
was one-sided in favor of Bryan and placed
Deborah in a much worse economic position than
she had during the marriage.

14.) Deborah moved to vacate the judgment
within 30 days of its entry. Pursuant to section 2—
1203 of the Code of Civil Procedure, a trial court,
in its discretion, may set aside or modify a judg-
ment within 30 days of its entry. 735 ILCS 5/2—
1203 (West 2006). On review, an appellate court
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must not merely review whether the trial court’s
decision pursuant to section 2—1203 represented
an abuse of discretion but whether substantial jus-
tice is being done between the parties. In re
Marriage of Sutherland, 251 1ll. App. 3d 411, 622
N.E.2d 105 (1993) 93 IFLR 274. Here, based on the
procedural and substantive unconscionability of
the marital settlement agreement, the trial court’s
decision to vacate the agreement resulted in justice
being done between the parties.

» CRIMINAL ACT

Probation Revoked and Two Year Sentence
Imposed After Defendant Wilfully Fails to
Complete Domestic Violence Counseling.

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS,
Plaintiff-Appellee v. LORENZO BASSETTE,
Defendant-Appellant. April 28, 2009, I1l.App.Ct.
4th District, No. 4-07-0528, Scott Drazewski,
trial judge.

In April 2006, defendant, Lorenzo Bassette,
agreed to admit violating the terms of his probation
by willfully failing to complete domestic-violence
counseling. In exchange for Lorenzo’s admission,
the State agreed to forego prosecution on several
other petitions to revoke his probation. Following
the State’s factual-basis presentation, the trial court
accepted Lorenzo’s admission and later resen-
tenced him to two years in prison.

Lorenzo appealed, arguing that the trial court
erred by revoking his probation because “the evi-
dence showed that [his] failure to obtain the required
domestic[-]violence assessment and counseling was
due to his poverty, and not to any willful acts” on his
part. The appellate court disagreed and affirmed.

1.) In December 2004, Lorenzo pleaded guilty
to domestic battery (720 ILCS 5/12-3.2(a)(2) (West
Supp. 2003)). The trial court thereafter sentenced
him to 180 days in jail and 30 months’ probation.
Part of Lorenzo’s plea agreement required him to
“obtain [a domestic-violence] assessment and com-
plete treatment by [the date of his] review hearing.”
The trial court ordered him to do so as a condition
of his probation.

2.) In October 2003, the supreme court
adopted Rule 402A (210 I1l. 2d R. 402A) governing
admissions or stipulations in proceedings to revoke
probation, conditional discharge, or supervision.
Rule 402A is very similar to Supreme Court Rule
402, which governs pleas of guilty or stipulations
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sufficient to convict. Of particular importance for
this case, paragraph (c) of Rule 402A is essentially
identical to paragraph (c) of Rule 402, in that both
require that the trial court should not revoke pro-
bation or enter a final judgment on a plea of guilty
“without first determining that there is a factual
basis” for Lorenzo’s admission or stipulation or
guilty plea.

3.) The record was completely devoid of any
basis for concluding that the trial court abused its
discretion when it determined that the State pre-
sented a factual basis for Lorenzo’s admission. The
State fully complied with Rule 402A(c)’s require-
ment to provide a factual basis when it explained
that (1) Lorenzo was on probation, (2) completing
domestic-violence counseling was a requirement of
Lorenzo’s probation, and (3) Lorenzo did not com-
plete domestic-violence counseling. The State was
not somehow required to address how it would
prove that Lorenzo’s failure to comply with a con-
dition of his probation was willful. As earlier stated,
if Lorenzo thought he was getting a “bum deal”
because his failure to comply was not willful, his
remedy was to not admit the petition’s allegations.

4.) Lorenzo contended that his testimony at the
sentencing hearing—that he could not afford to
pay for the domestic-violence treatment because he
had lost his job—supported his claim that the
State’s representation regarding the factual basis
was deficient.

5.) A proceeding that complies with Rule 402
or Rule 402A, specifically including representa-
tions concerning a factual basis, cannot be undone
by representations or evidence presented in subse-
quent proceedings. Thus, Lorenzo’s claims at his
sentencing hearing were totally beside the point
when assessing whether this trial court complied
with Rule 402A. The court did so, and nothing
Lorenzo could later say could change that fact.
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» DOMESTIC VIOLENCE

Affair Ends Badly but Appellate Court Reverses
Order of Protection. Trial Court Failed to Make
the Minimum Required Findings of Fact.

SCOTT A. BAUER, Petitioner-Appellee, v. LISA
McCARTY, Respondent-Appellant. April 17,
2009, IlIl.App.Ct. 5th District, No. 5-08-0134
Laninya A. Cason, trial judge. Rule 23.

Lisa appealed the order entered by the trial
court granting Scott’s petition for an order of pro-
tection against her. The appellate court reversed.

1.) The parties entered into an intimate rela-
tionship in September 2007, despite both parties
being married. The affair ended on February 14,
2008. On February 19, 2008, Scott filed a petition
for an emergency order of protection against Lisa
and alleged that she was harassing him and his wife.
The trial court granted the emergency order of pro-
tection.

2.) On March 11, 2008, a hearing was held on
the petition for a plenary order of protection.
During the hearing, Scott explained that the parties
began an affair in September 2007. On November
17, 2007, Scott’s wife overheard the parties during
a telephone conversation and asked Scott to move
out of their home. Scott then moved in with Lisa;
however, around December 12, 2007, Scott broke
up with Lisa. Scott alleged that Lisa then tried to
commit suicide. He also testified that Lisa was
arrested for disorderly conduct during an incident
in which Lisa tried to beat in his door. The parties
did not have contact for a few weeks but began talk-
ing again after Christmas. The affair finally ended
on February 14, 2008. Scott testified that Lisa
began placing harassing phone calls and that she
had called him continuously for a period of 48
hours. He then proceeded to get the order of pro-
tection. Scott testified that the last time that Lisa
had harassed him, she threatened to tell his wife
“everything” if he did not “go back to her.”

During cross-examination, Scott admitted that
his wife had obtained an order of protection against
him on November 25, 2007, after he had threat-
ened her. He also admitted to going to Lisa’s house
on February 14, 2008, to retrieve his items. He
admitted that he knocked on Lisa’s window and
door, but he denied that he had harassed her.

Scott’s wife, Amy Lynn Bauer, testified that she
had received from Lisa 10 phone calls at her place
of employment at a local school. Amy told Lisa that
she could not receive personal phone calls at work.
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However, Lisa continued calling, claiming that it
was an emergency. Amy testified that Lisa had also
called their home phone until her husband
obtained the order of protection. Amy also con-
firmed that she had obtained an order of protection
against her husband in November 2007.

Lisa testified that Scott came over to her house
on February 14, 2008, and harassed her by repeat-
edly knocking on the door, ringing the doorbell,
knocking on the window, and calling her. She fur-
ther testified that later that night Scott threatened
her by saying: “I’'m going to bring all you mother-
fuckers down. I'm going to kick your ass. I'm going
to kick all your boys’ ass.” The following morning
her friend observed that his tire had been slashed.
Lisa went to the police department on February 15,
2008, and filed a police report for telephone harass-
ment against Scott. However, she chose not to
obtain an order of protection against Scott. Lisa
admitted that she had called Scott and his wife, but
she denied that she had harassed them.

Kevin Wesselman testified that at the time of
his testimony he was dating Lisa and was present at
her home on February 14, 2008. He testified that
Scott had been calling her house and cell phone.
He also testified that Scott came over to her house
and beat on her front door and window and threat-
ened to come back that evening with a baseball bat.

3.) At the conclusion of the hearing, the trial
court granted the petition for the plenary order of
protection and stated: “Why I am going to grant
you this order of protection is because you beat her
to the punch. If she would have came [sic] first[,]
she would have gotten it because it’s the same set of
facts, the same set of facts. If she came in first[,] she
would have gotten one against you. I mean it’s not
a thing where it’s against you[;] it’s both of you.
Okay? You’ve got to clean up your situation.” The
trial court’s written order granting the plenary
order of protection was entered March 11, 2008.
Lisa filed a timely notice of appeal on March 19,
2008.

4.) The order of protection expired March 11,
2009, and thus the issue presented by Lisa was
moot. However, moot issues may be reviewed
under the public-interest exception. Orders of pro-
tection address problems of public interest, and
their purposes can be achieved only when courts
properly apply the statutory requirements.

5.) The trial court failed to set forth the specific
factual findings as required by section 214(c) of the
Act. The trial court failed to articulate any factual
findings during the hearing. The trial court simply
stated: “Why I am going to grant you this order of
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protection is because you beat her to the punch. If
she would have came [sic] first[,] she would have
gotten it ***.” This perfunctory finding does not
satisfy the statutory requirements of the Act.
Furthermore, the trial court’s factual findings in the
written order also violated section 214(c). The writ-
ten order failed to indicate that the trial court con-
sidered whether the conduct or actions of Lisa,
unless prohibited, would likely cause irreparable
harm or continued abuse pursuant to section
214(c)(3)(ii) of the Act. The trial court also failed
to consider whether it was necessary to grant the
requested relief in order to protect Scott or other
alleged abused persons pursuant to section
214(c)(3)(iii).

6.) The trial court should abide by its statutory
obligation to make specific findings prior to enter-
ing protection under the Act. In re Marriage of
Healy, 263 1ll. App. 3d 596, 602 (1994) 94 IFLR
149. In the instant case, the trial court failed to
articulate orally or in writing the minimum statuto-
rily required findings in violation of the Act.

» MAINTENANCE

Permanent Maintenance Award to Wife
Employable as Registered Nurse, Affirmed.

IN RE MARRIAGE OF KEVIN DVORAK,
Petitioner-Appellant, and CHERYL DVORAK,
Respondent-Appellee. ~ February 24, 20009,
I11.App.Ct. 2nd District, No. 2-07-0968, Diane E.
Winter, trial judge. Rule 23.

The trial court awarded Cheryl $1,000 per month
in permanent maintenance. Kevin appealed, chal-
lenging the trial court’s maintenance award and its
classification of certain property. The appellate
court affirmed.

1.) Kevin, age 46, petitioned for dissolution of
his 25-year marriage to Cheryl, age 52. The parties
had two children, both emancipated. Kevin worked
as director of strategic partnerships at American
Digital, and Cheryl worked as a registered nurse.

In July 2005, Cheryl left the marital home in
Mundelein. She resided in an apartment for seven
months and then moved to Daytona, Florida.

2.) Kevin testified that he was a disabled vet-
eran who has suffered kidney failure and has Type
IT diabetes. Kevin’s health issues impacted his abil-
ity to maintain employment. He began working for
American Digital in 2005 with a $70,000 base
salary. In that year, he also received a $20,000 sign-
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ing bonus. Kevin’s 2006 W-2 form states that his
gross earnings, which included commissions, were
$80,845.16. In 2007, his base salary remained at
$70,000.

Kevin received a graduate degree in 2000 and
had outstanding student loans of $2,494 to Citibank
and about $22,000 to Sallie Mae. In addition to his
own, Kevin was making payments on their son
Marshal’s student loans. The combined monthly
payments to Sallie Mae were $181.36. Kevin rented
a two-bedroom town home. He drove a 2002 Jeep
Liberty and did not make payments on it.

Kevin further testified that the parties pur-
chased between 40 and 50 Lladro figurines over the
course of the marriage. “Some” were gifts for
Cheryl for birthdays and holidays, and others were
purchased as investments. The parties did not come
to any agreement as to their allocation.

3.) Cheryl testified that she suffers from
depression and took Lexipro. She moved to Florida
following the parties’ separation because she no
longer had family in Illinois. Cheryl explained that
she had a lot of emotional support in Florida.
Cheryl’s mother, brother, and niece live in Florida.
Her mother resided close to Cheryl.

In Florida, Cheryl lived in a four-bedroom
apartment, paying $1,000 per month in rent. Her
daughter, Heather, and Heather’s three-week-old
infant live with her, and Cheryl supported them.
Heather had not contributed funds for Cheryl’s
expenses at her Florida residence.

Addressing the time after she moved out of the
marital home and while she lived in an apartment
in Illinois, Cheryl testified that her depression
became “significantly worse.” She spent about 15
hours per day in bed. After she moved to Florida,
her depression was significantly reduced.

Cheryl further testified that she is licensed as a
registered nurse in both Illinois and Florida. After
she relocated to Florida, Cheryl worked was asked
to resign due to downsizing, and, so, she did. At the
time of trial, Cheryl did not have health insurance
and she had not applied for unemployment bene-
fits.

Addressing her automobile, Cheryl testified
that it was “totaled” and that she did not currently
own a working automobile. Addressing her credit
cards, Cheryl testified that she stopped using the
cards three years ago and that all of the charges
reflected in the balances were incurred earlier than
three years ago.

Cheryl earned $24,505 in 2002 and $21,654 in
2003. In 2005, Cheryl earned $57,264 while working
at Libertyville Manor, a nursing home.
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Cheryl further testified that, when she returns
to Florida, she intended to register for a 12-week
program at a hospital that trains nurses who have
been working outside of a hospital for a long time.
She believed that she was eligible for the program.
Currently, Cheryl was looking for work at hospitals,
nursing homes, and doctors’ offices.

Cheryl conceded that, in 2003 and 2004, she
administered to herself prescription drugs in
amounts in excess of what her doctors authorized
her to take. She also conceded that, on three occa-
sions, she had disciplinary issues with her nursing
board concerning substance abuse.

As to the Lladro figurines, Cheryl testified that
she and Kevin acquired about 40 during the mar-
riage. She possessed all but two of them. She
received “most” of the figurines as gifts. Cheryl
estimated that 8 or 10 figurines were purchased
either by herself or Kevin for something other than
a special occasion.

4.) The trial court found that Kevin earned
$123,318.33 in 2004, $101,715 in 2005, and $83,149
in 2006. It also found that Kevin had a $70,000 base
salary in 2007 with the possibility of commissions.
As to Cheryl, the court found that she earned
$28,965.98 in 2004, $57,164 in 2005, and $45,214 in
2006. The trial court also found that Cheryl became
unemployed a few weeks before trial commenced.

As to Cheryl’s employment, the trial court
found that her history showed that she has always
worked and had been able to secure employment in
little time. The trial court found that she was
expected to earn the same income she earned in
2006-$45,000. As to Kevin’s employment, the court
found that Kevin had new employment in 2006 and
that it was expected that he will continue to receive
bonuses and otherwise increase his earnings.

The trial court noted that it had considered the
parties’ financial affidavits and awarded Cheryl
permanent maintenance of $1,000 per month
beginning May 1, 2007. The trial court found that
Cheryl would benefit from attaining additional
education so she could secure work in a hospital
rather than a nursing home; that this education was
delayed during the marriage; that it would enable
her to increase her earnings; and that the time
needed to attain this education was relatively short.
The trial court characterized the parties’ standard
of living during the marriage as modest, with some
vacations and trips. It also noted that the parties
were middle-aged and that, given Cheryl’s depres-
sion and prescription drug abuse, Cheryl’s current
emotional condition was poor to fair.

The trial court found that the marital estate
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was “relatively small” and that it should be equally
divided.

Kevin shall be responsible for 55% of the mar-
ital debt and Cheryl for 45% of the marital debt
because that mirrors their respective incomes after
maintenance payments were taken into account.

The trial court found that Kevin was entitled to
receive three additional figurines.

On August 27, 2007, the trial court denied
Kevin’s motion to reconsider, with the exception of
awarding Cheryl an E*Trade account re-valued at
$8,400. Kevin appeals.

5.) Temporary maintenance “is appropriate
only where the spouse is employable at an income
that would provide the approximate standard of liv-
ing enjoyed during the marriage. Permanent main-
tenance is necessary where a spouse is not employ-
able or is employable only at a low income as com-
pared to [his or] her previous standard of living.”
Selinger, 351 111. App. 3d at 615. With the enact-
ment of the Act in 1977, the legislature sought to
provide for the financial needs of the spouses
through the disposition of property rather than
through maintenance. The 1993 amendments to
the Act “made it easier for maintenance to be
awarded, but maintenance is not the absolute right
of every party to a marriage and should be mainly
reserved for circumstances of necessity.” Bratcher,
383 I1l. App. 3d at 390.

6.) Kevin argued that the trial court erred in
awarding Cheryl $1,000 per month in permanent
maintenance. Cheryl worked full time during most
of the parties’ marriage, was a registered nurse with
a degree, and had an income that was lower but
“not substantially disproportionate” to warrant the
trial court’s “extensive” permanent maintenance
award.

Kevin argued that the trial court erred in find-
ing that the standard of living during the parties’
marriage was modest and in awarding Cheryl per-
manent maintenance without comparing Cheryl’s
current lifestyle and needs to her lifestyle during the
parties’ marriage. According the Kevin, the evi-
dence did not show that Cheryl’s standard of living
deteriorated or would deteriorate as a result of the
divorce. Kevin further noted that Cheryl worked full
time during most of their marriage and was a regis-
tered nurse, which provides her with the ability to
earn sufficient income to maintain her standard of
living. He further asserted that there was no testi-
mony that Cheryl was a dependent spouse. Kevin
contends that the parties’ marriage was of a long
duration, that they lived no more than a less-than-
moderate lifestyle, and that they both worked full
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time for most of the marriage. He argued that he
was as dependent on Cheryl’s income to maintain
his standard of living as Cheryl was on his. Kevin
emphasized that Cheryl presented no evidence that
the marriage negatively impacted her career in
terms of her earning capacity. He asserted that
Cheryl was self-supporting and rented a four bed-
room apartment (with $1,000 monthly rental pay-
ments) without any additional funds from Kevin.

Alternatively, he asserted that, to the extent it
was shown that Cheryl’s standard of living dimin-
ished after their separation, Kevin’s also dimin-
ished to the same extent. During their marriage,
Kevin asserted, the parties pooled their assets to
achieve a standard of living higher than they could
individually achieve. Kevin contended that the trial
court abused its discretion when it awarded Cheryl
maintenance because the evidence showed that the
parties’ standard of living during the marriage was
less than moderate and more similar to those who
live paycheck to paycheck. He also noted that
Cheryl was unemployed due to her voluntary move
to Florida and her voluntary decision to terminate
her employment there.

7.) The trial court did not err in assessing the
parties’ standard of living and earning power
before and after their separation. As to their earn-
ings, the trial court found that Kevin earned about
$83,149 per year, which was his most recent annual
rate and his lowest salary in recent years. As to
Cheryl’s earnings, the trial court found that she is
expected to earn the income she earned in 2006—
about $45,214; this figure was the second-highest
salary she had earned in recent years: The trial
court, thus, took a conservative approach in assess-
ing the parties’ salary differential. There was no
error with its calculations. It was clear that Kevin’s
salary was nearly twice that of Cheryl’s salary.

Although Cheryl was unemployed at trial, the
trial court set her earning capacity at $45,214,
which incorporated Cheryl’s most recent full-time
employment (primarily in Florida) and her second
highest recent salary.

8.) The parties accumulated debts during the
marriage that they could not pay, Cheryl testified
that they paid their bills as they came due. As to
Cheryl’s decision to move to Florida, the appellate
court disagreed with Kevin that the trial court
should have penalized Cheryl for it. Cheryl earned
her second highest recent salary while working in
Florida, and the trial court found that this salary
was her future earning capacity. On her salary
alone, Cheryl’s standard of living would not be the
same as during the parties’ marriage. Indeed,
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Cheryl testified that the parties paid their bills dur-
ing the marriage as they came due; however, since
their separation, Cheryl had been unable to pay for
her expenses without borrowing funds.
Furthermore, that Kevin would suffer a drop in his
standard of living after the parties’ separation did
not necessarily preclude a permanent maintenance
award to Cheryl, especially in light of the trial
court’s findings that her salary was nearly one-half
of Kevin’s salary. The trial court did not err in this
respect, whether the parties’ standard of living was
characterized as modest or less than that.

Kevin argued next that the trial court failed to
consider the parties’ needs when it awarded Cheryl
permanent maintenance. Specifically, Kevin con-
tended that the maintenance award adversely
affects his ability to meet his own needs and he did
not have the ability to pay Cheryl maintenance.
There existed a $1,353.10 differential between his
gross W-2 earnings and the gross wages he listed in
his financial affidavit. In the appellate court’s view,
the trial court could have reasonably found that
Kevin’s financial affidavit understated his net avail-
able monthly income and further reasonably found
that Kevin had the resources to pay Cheryl $1,000
per month in maintenance.

9.) The trial court’s award of permanent main-
tenance over limited maintenance was not erro-
neous based on the trial court’s finding that
Cheryl’s income was overly disproportionate to
Kevin’s income. It was not unreasonable for the
court to find that Cheryl’s earning capacity after
the parties’ separation was not near an amount that
would provide the standard of living she enjoyed
while married to Kevin.

B. Property Classification

10.) Next, Kevin argued that the trial court
erred in finding that 30 of the 40 Lladro figurines
were Cheryl’s non-marital property, where they
both testified that “some” were given to Cheryl as
gifts and where no further testimony was presented
as to how many were gifts or the value of any gifts.

However, there was testimony at trial as to how
many figurines were given as gifts. Cheryl testified
that she received “most” of the figurines as gifts
and estimated that 8 or 10 figurines were purchased
either by herself or Kevin for something other than
a special occasion. Kevin did not refute this testi-
mony. The trial court found that 10 of the figurines
were marital property and the remainder were gifts
to Cheryl. Based on the testimony at trial, the
appellate court could not conclude that the trial
court’s findings were against the manifest weight of
the evidence.
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» PROPERTY

The Allowance of Interest in Dissolution Matters is
not Mandatory but Lies within the Sound
Discretion of the Trial Judge.

IN RE MARRIAGE OF NANCY CALLAHAN
flkla VANDER HOONING, Petitioner-Appellee,
and ~ ROBERT VANDER  HOONING,
Respondent-Appellant. May 13, 2009, Ill.App.Ct.
1st District, No. 1-08-1210, Grace G. Dickler,
trial judge. Rule 23.

Robert was obligated by a marital settlement
agreement to pay Nancy half of any income tax
refunds for 1998. After granting Nancy’s second
motion to compel payment under that provision,
the trial court ordered Robert to pay 3% interest
from the filing of the motion to payment of Nancy’s
share of the refunds. Nancy appealed from an
order denying reconsideration of the interest
award, contending that she was entitled to statutory
9% post-judgment interest beginning when Robert
received the refunds. See 735 ILCS 5/2-1303. The
appellate court affirmed.

1.) Section 2-1303 of the Code governs the
imposition of 9% interest on civil judgments.

2.) In Finley v. Finley, 81 1Il. 2d 317, 331-32
(1980) 80 IFLR 78 our supreme court determined
that post-judgment interest on a child support judg-
ment was not mandatory under the statutory prede-
cessor to section 2-1303 but instead a matter of the
trial court’s discretion. “[A] divorce proceeding
partakes so much of the nature of a chancery pro-
ceeding that it must be governed to a great extent
by the rules that are applicable thereto,” including
that “the allowance of interest lies within the sound
discretion of the trial judge and is allowed where
warranted by equitable considerations and is disal-
lowed if such an award would not comport with jus-
tice and equity.”

3.) The appellate court has divided on the
import of Finley. Many opinions construe Finley as
rendering post-judgment interest discretionary for
all dissolution matters. In re Marriage of Polsky, 387
I1l. App. 3d 126, 141 (1st Dist. 4th Div. 2008); In re
Marriage of Berto, 344 111. App. 3d 705, 719-20 (2d
Dist. 2003); In re Marriage of Carrier, 332 1ll. App.
3d 654, 659-60 (2d Dist. 2002); In re Marriage of
Kaufman, 299 11l. App. 3d 508, 509-11 (1st Dist. 2d
Div. 1998); In re Marriage of Ahlness, 229 1ll. App.
3d 761, 763-64 (4th Dist. 1992); In re Marriage of
Stone, 155 1ll. App. 3d 62, 71 (4th Dist. 1987);
Robinson v. Robinson, 140 1ll. App. 3d 610, 612 (1st
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Dist. 2d Div. 1986). Others have ‘construed Finley
to apply only to child support judgments, applying
section 2-1303 mandatorily to other dissolution
judgments such as maintenance payments and
property settlements. In re Marriage of Sunko, 237
I11. App. 3d 996, 1000-01 (1st Dist. 1st Div. 1992); In
re Marriage of Morris, 190 1ll. App. 3d 293, 296-97
(1st Dist. 1st Div. 1989).

4.) Here, the appellate court found that the lan-
guage of Finley and the weight of case law sup-
ported the application of Finley in all dissolution
matters. The imposition of interest on a judgment
in a dissolution case, other than for child support
(see 735 ILCS 5/12-109(b) (West 2006)), is a matter
of the trial court’s discretion rather than a manda-
tory application of section 2-1303 as Nancy con-
tended.

5.) Itis axiomatic that an “award of interest on
a money judgment requires that: (1) the amount of
money to be paid was certain and (2) the judgment
debtor enjoyed the improper use of the money dur-
ing the period for which interest is to be awarded.”
Robinson, 140 1ll. App. 3d at 611.

It was arguably true that both factors existed
from when Robert received his 1998 income tax
refunds (Nancy’s half-share thereof being easily
computed) until he paid Nancy her share.
However, the appellate court has also held that the
circumstances, “including appellant’s delay in
bringing [her] claim,” combined with the absence
of hearing transcripts, rendered us “unable to con-
clude that the trial court’s refusal to award interest
*#% was an abuse of discretion.” Robinson, 140 Ill.
App. 3d at 613.

The appellate court, here, noted the many
months, even years, between motions and rulings in
this case and the trial court’s request that Nancy
address the “reason for past continuances” before
an award of interest. In that light, and in light of the
fact that Nancy was not denied but awarded inter-
est, the appellate court could not find an abuse of
discretion.
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Appellate Court Reverses Trial Court’s
Classifications of Non-Marital Property.
Retained Earnings are Considered Marital if
the Spouse has Control over the Decision to
Disburse the Retained Earnings.

IN RE MARRIAGE OF SANDRA L. SCHMITT,
Petitioner-Appellant, and KIM A. SCHMITT,
Respondent-Appellee. April 30, 2009, Ill.App.Ct.
2nd District, No. 2-07-0623, Robert B. Spence,
trial judge.

Sandra appealed from the trial court’s judgment
of dissolution of her marriage to Kim. On appeal,
Sandra argued that the trial court erred by classify-
ing as non-marital certain parcels of real estate pur-
chased during the marriage and also by classifying
as non-marital Kim’s business, Bricks, Inc. The
appellate court reversed and remanded for further
proceedings.

1.) Sandra and Kim were married on October
13, 1974. Both children were emancipated. The
marriage broke down in 1995 when Kim told
Sandra that he wanted a divorce. The grounds of
irreconcilable differences were established.

2.) Kim, age 60, earned a college degree prior
to the marriage. At the time of trial in February
through June 2006 he was the president and sole
shareholder of Bricks, Inc., a subchapter S corpora-
tion. Kim testified that he began working at
Colonial Brick Company (Colonial), a subchapter
S corporation, in 1969. In 1970 he was given partial
ownership of Colonial. In 1972, he was given a 49%
ownership interest in Colonial by Phillip Mumford,
who owned the remaining 51% of the corporation.
Before the parties were married, a Colonial bal-
ance sheet labeled “February 1974” showed that
Kim had an accumulated earnings and savings
account in the sum of $5,661.82, which represented
his share of the business.

Kim testified that in 1977, Kim and his partner,
Mumford, bought two parcels of property on
Kedzie Avenue in Chicago. The titles to the prop-
erties were not held in the name of Colonial, but
individually, by Kim and Mumford. The down pay-
ments and mortgages for these properties, $17,500
and $100,000, respectively, were paid out of
Colonial’s retained earnings account

Between 1974 and 1978 Kim and Mumford
bought real estate in Kentucky and on Cermak
Road in Chicago. They also formed the following
companies or business interests: Aggressive
Leasing, Emergency Demolition Contractors,
Appalachian Hardwood Products, and a saw mill.

JUNE 2009

Kim testified that in 1976 Kim and Mumford
formed a partnership, Aggressive Leasing, for the
purpose of maintaining and leasing heavy equip-
ment. In 1978 Kim and Mumford formed a
Missouri corporation, CBC Bricks, Inc., for the
purpose of reselling used brick, demolishing and
developing real estate, and selling off the assets.
Kim and Mumford owned CBC Bricks equally. In
1978 Kim and Mumford ended their business rela-
tionship, and as part of their separation agreement
Kim received, among other things, 100% of the
CBC Bricks stock.

The trial court admitted into evidence the June
1978 agreement that dissolved all business interests
between Kim and Mumford.

Kim submitted a summary document, along
with supporting documentation, showing that from
2000 through 2006 he paid a total of $895,000 from
the Bricks account for expenses for Sandra and the
parties’ children. The $895,000 included $191,000
in maintenance; $220,016 distributed per court
order; $320,565 in mortgage interest; and $95,553
in property taxes for the Batavia home.

3.) The trial court found that Kim’s ownership
interest in Colonial was acquired prior to the mar-
riage and was nonmarital property. Because the
Colonial funds were nonmarital, the trial court
ruled that Kim sustained his burden of proving by
clear and convincing evidence that all of the prop-
erties and businesses purchased with Colonial
funds were nonmarital property. The trial court
also found that Kim sustained his burden of prov-
ing by clear and convincing evidence that the prop-
erties and businesses purchased with Bricks’ funds
were nonmarital, because Bricks’ was nonmarital.
However, the trial court found that Kim’s “per-
sonal efforts contributed significantly to the growth
and value of Bricks, Inc.” The trial court found that
Kim’s yearly salary was only approximately $20,000
throughout the marriage. The trial court found that
Kim did not need to reimburse the marital estate
with his nonmarital assets because from 2000
through 2006 he adequately compensated the mar-
ital estate with his salary and “other payments
made by Bricks, Inc., for the benefit of [Sandra]
and the children [in the amount of $895,000].”

However, because Kim deposited Bricks’ funds
into the parties’ joint checking account to pay for
part of the mortgages and real estate taxes for the
Batavia residence and Schmitt Farms, Kim had to
reimburse the marital estate $121,794 and $78,928,
respectively.

The trial court found that the gross value of
Kim’s nonmarital property was $11,591,000 and the
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net value of Kim’s nonmarital property was
$6,091,000. The trial court found that the value of
the marital property was $350,722. The trial court
awarded Sandra 100% of the marital property
minus $150,000 for her dissipation of the marital
assets, for a total award of $200,722. The trial court
ordered Kim to pay Sandra $1 million in gross
maintenance and arrearage. Each party was
ordered to pay his or her own attorney fees.

4.) The appellate court granted Sandra’s
motion to strike portions of Kim’s brief citing In Re
the Marriage of Mugnolo 07 IFLR 116 as it was not
cited for any of the proper bases listed in Rule 23.
The appellate court denied Kim’s motion to strike
portions of Sandra’s reply brief that refered to a
CPA article and to a Federal Internal Revenue
Service audit report regarding subchapter S corpo-
ration officer compensation. Sandra correctly
argued that these references were not evidence, but
citations to secondary authorities that have been
properly cited by litigants and reviewing courts to
support arguments and holdings, respectively.

5.) There is a rebuttable presumption that all
property acquired by either spouse after the date of
marriage but before the entry of judgment of disso-
lution is marital property, regardless of how title is
held. 750 ILCS 5/503(b). A party can overcome this
presumption only by a showing of clear and con-
vincing evidence that the property falls within one
of the exceptions listed in section 503(a). The party
claiming that the property is nonmarital has the
burden of proof, and any doubts as to the nature of
the property are resolved in favor of finding that
the property is marital

6.) Kim worked for Colonial and that he was
given distributions to make the down payments and
mortgage payments for the Kedzie properties. Kim
testified that the payments for the properties, made
on behalf of himself and Mumford, were reflected
on Colonial’s books at the end of the year as distri-
butions to Kim and Mumford in their respective
ownership percentages. Thus, the distributions
were income to Kim. Kim also testified that he pur-
chased the Kedzie properties as an individual.
Nothing sufficiently rebutted the presumption that
the distributions were attributable to Kim’s per-
sonal efforts. Therefore, the trial court’s finding
that the Kedzie properties were purchased with
nonmarital funds, and were thus nonmarital, was
against the manifest weight of the evidence.

7.) Regarding the remaining real properties
(the property in Kentucky and the property on
Cermak Road in Chicago) and businesses
(Aggressive Leasing, Emergency Demolition
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Contractors, Appalachian Hardwood Products, and
the saw mill) purchased by Colonial, Kim testified
that funds from Colonial were used to purchase
them. Kim could not recall, specifically, what funds,
if any, were charged against his retained earnings
account for these real estate and business interests.

8.) A subchapter S corporation monitors its
retained corporate earnings using an account which
is then used to determine each shareholder’s basis
for taxed but undistributed corporate income.
However, retained earnings and profits of a sub-
chapter S corporation are a corporate asset and
remain the corporation’s property until severed
from the other corporate assets and distributed as
dividends.

9.) Kim failed to establish by clear and convinc-
ing evidence that the funds used to purchase these
assets were not distributions and, thus, income
attributable to his personal efforts. Therefore, the
trial court’s finding that they were purchased with
nonmarital funds was against the manifest weight of
the evidence.

Kim noted that both he and Mumford testified
that the funds used to purchase the real properties
and businesses were drawn from Colonial’s operat-
ing account. However, this did not negate the fact
that Kim could not recall whether these with-
drawals were later charged against Kim’s retained
earnings account, thus constituting a distribution to
Kim. Accordingly, Kim’s and Mumford’s testimony
did not change the outcome here.

10.) The business interest of a spouse acquired
subsequent to marriage constitutes ‘marital prop-
erty’ subject to equitable distribution upon dissolu-
tion. Real property and business interests acquired
after marriage are presumed to be marital property
unless they were purchased with nonmarital funds.

11.) The trial court found that Bricks was non-
marital property because it was “formed with funds
from [Kim’s] non-marital interest in Colonial.” It
was undisputed that Bricks was acquired after the
marriage and, therefore, is presumed to be marital
property. Further, because Kim failed to show that
the funds from his interest in Colonial were not
attributable to his personal efforts, these funds
were presumed to be marital property. 750 ILCS
5/503(a)(8)

12.) Although retained earnings in subchapter S
corporations are generally considered nonmarital,
they are considered marital if the spouse has con-
trol over the decision to disburse the retained earn-
ings. Kim testified that he did not know whether
the money from Bricks was credited to his retained
earnings account. Kim, as sole shareholder of
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Bricks, had complete control of and access to the
retained earnings. Thus, the inference to be drawn
from the evidence is that the funds were attributed
to his personal efforts. Accordingly, the retained
earnings of Bricks, and all assets Kim purchased
with them, were presumed to be marital, and the
record did not show that Kim rebutted with suffi-
cient evidence either the inference or the presump-
tion. Kim noted that he testified that the funds used
to purchase the assets were drawn from Bricks’
operating account. However, this did not negate
the fact that Kim could not recall whether these
withdrawals were later charged against his retained
earnings account, thus constituting a distribution to
Kim.

13.) The trial court also erroneously found that
Kim’s yearly salary of $20,000 and expenses paid
for Sandra and the parties’ children for the years
2000 though 2006 from his nonmarital estate ade-
quately compensated them so that he did not need
to reimburse the marital estate. This finding was
against the manifest weight of the evidence. Kim
did not present evidence of his contributions for
expenses for Sandra and the children for 1974
through 1999, which constituted most of the par-
ties’ marriage. The trial court’s finding that
$895,000 was sufficient to reimburse the marital
estate, from Bricks’ gross value along with its pur-
chases of approximately $10,761,000 in real estate,
was against the manifest weight of the evidence.
Kim did not present evidence sufficient to show
that Bricks and the properties purchased by Bricks
were marital property.

NNNNENNENNEEEENEENEEN
LEGISLATIVE ACTION

Child-support enforcement

Senate Bill 100 (Martinez, D-Chicago; Mell,
D-Chicago) amends the Income Withholding for
Support Act. A payor (employer) who knowingly
fails to withhold child support and forward it to
the State Disbursement Unit within seven days
from notice is subject to a $100 fine per day.
Under current law, the payor’s nonperformance
may be documented only by certified mail, return
receipt requested. Senate Bill 100 simply
expands the definition of notice to include per-
sonal service by the sheriff or private process
server. It has passed both chambers.
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Rolseth (2nd) 79
Ruttenberg (US Dist Ct) 42
Schmitt (2nd) 91
Stomberg (3rd) Rule 23 68
Troue (5th) Rule 23 52
Valkiunas (2nd) 3
Walker (4th) 899 NE2d 1097, 386 IIIApp3d 1034.......cccocueevmvrriennncee 9
Walker (3rd) Rule 23 76
Winter (1st) 899 NE2d 1080, 387 INAPp3d 21 .....covevuvicicicicicncnnee 14
TOPICAL SUMMARY INDEX
ADOPTION

Adoption Agency — The Cradle Society 61
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Consent to Adoption — In the Matter of the Petition of A.F. to Adopt J.A.A
29

Contact — In the Matter of the Petition of A.F. to Adopt J.A.A 29

Default — In the Matter of the Petition of A.F. to Adopt J.A.A 29

Fraud - The Cradle Society 61

Home Study - The Cradle Society 61

Incarceration — In the Matter of the Petition of A.F. to Adopt J.A.A 29

Jurisdiction - The Cradle Society 61

Notice — In Re Petition of D.D.D & S.P 63

Putative Father Registry - In Re Petition of D.D.D & S.P 63

Self-Incrimination — In Re PM.C & J.L.C 45

Superior Rights - In Re Petition of D.D.D & S.P 63

Termination of Parental Rights — In Re B.B. & A. T, 1, In Re Konstantinos
H.3

AGREEMENTS

Attorney Fees — Best 18

Joint Custody — Al-Hawarey 48

Prenuptial — Best 18

Unconscionable — Al-Hawarey 48, Dewey 81

APPEALS
Dismissal — Valkiunas 8

ATTORNEY FEES
Antenuptial Agreements — Best 18
Ability to Pay — Awan 46
Amount — Awan 46
Bankruptcy — Greco 19
Child-related issues — Best 18
Custody — Harrison 32
Disgorgement — Doyle 19
Mandatory — Harrison 32

CHILDREN
CUSTODY:
Appeals — Valkiunas 8
Attorney Fees — Greco 19, Harrison 32
Child Representative — Doyle 19, Greco 19
Cohabitation — Kahn 33
Evidence hearsay— Eckert 64
Guardian ad litem - Eckert 64
Grandparents — Carrell 21
Intervenors- Grandparents — Carrell 21
Joint Custody — Tioue 52
Jurisdiction — In Re Baby Girl F.7
Jurisdiction to Modify — In Re Baby Girl F.7
Mental Health Records — Quigg 51
PKPA — In Re Baby Girl F.7
Removal — Al-Hawarey 48, Bunting 4, Kayser 34
Sexual Orientation — Kahn 33
Standing — Carrell 21
UCCIJA - In Re Baby Girl F.7
UCCIJEA - In Re Baby Girl F. 7
SUPPORT:
Abatement — Reimer 35
College Expenses — Marsden 70
Contempt — Eckert 64
Denial of — Nurty 11
Determination - Eckert 64
Division of Assets — Nutty 11
Income — Dean 31, Stomberg 68
Interest — Callahan 90
IRA Accounts — Eberhardt 6
Laches — Davenport 50
Limitations — Davenport 50
Net Income — Dean 31, Eberhardt 6, Stomberg 68
Personal Injury Awards - Stomberg 68
Retained Earnings — Flowers 65
Subchapter S Corp — Flowers 65
Void - Eckert 64
VISITATION:
Restriction — Lipski 66
Supervised — Lipski 66

CIVIL PRACTICE
EVIDENCE:
Confidentiality — Quigg 51
Injunction — Ewing 54, Kahn 33
Forum Non Convienens - The Cradle Society 61
JUDGMENTS AND ORDERS:
Substantial Justice — In the Matter of the Petition of A.E. to Adopt J.A.A 29
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Vacating — In the Matter of the Petition of A.F. to Adopt J.A.A 29, Rolseth
79
Jurisdiction — The Cradle Society 61
Request to Admit Facts — Coulson 37
Sanctions — Eberhardt 6

CRIMINAL ACT

Domestic Battery — People v. Bassette 85
Domestic Violence — People v. Bassette 85
Order of Proection — People v. Leezer 38
Psychological Counseling — People v. Bassette 85
Sentence — People v. Bassette 85

Stalking — Curtis v. Montgomery 22

DISSOLUTION OF MARRIAGE
Attorney-Client Ethics — Alhilou 23
Attorneys Fees — Nettleton 24
Attorney, liability of — Nettleton 24
Duties of Attorney — Genovese 39
Joint Petition — Alhilou 23
Malpractice — Genovese 39, Nettleton 24

DOMESTIC VIOLENCE
Civil Liability — Lacey v. Palatine 40
Findings — Bauer 86
Immunity — Lacey v. Palatine 40
Plenary Order — Bauer 86

HOMESTEAD
Belcher 26

JUVENILE
Corporal punishment — In Re: B.H. 70
Neglect — In Re: J.W. 9
Placements — In Re B.B. & A.T. 1
Termination — In Re B.B. & A.T 1
MAINTENANCE
Amount — Awan 46, Walker 9
Employable — Dvorak 87
Income — Dvorak 87
Lifestyle — Walker 76
Life Insurance — Walker 9
Limited — Dvorak 87
Modification — Gosney 41, Marsden 70
Period of time — Patterson 73
Permanent — Dvorak 87, Patterson 73, Walker 9, Walker 76
Rehabilitative — Awan 46, Patterson 73, Walker 76
Reviewable — Awan 46, Patterson 73, Walker 76
Time limited — Awan 46
Unallocated — Gosney 41

PARENTAGE

Actions by Child — Rolseth 79

DNA tests — Rolseth 79

Limitations — Rolseth 79

Non-Paternity Order — Rolseth 79

Vacating — Rolseth 79

Voluntary Acknowledgment - In Re Petition of D.D.D & S.P 63

PROPERTY
Bifercation — Awan 46
Child Support — Nutty 8
Classification of Property — Schmitt 91
Closely Held Business — Schmitt 91
Date of Valuation — Awan 46
Division of — Poisky 12, Walker 9
ERISA - Kennedy 55
Eviction — Ewing 54
Factors to be Considered — Polsky 12
Family Home — Ewing 54
Fraudulent Transfers — Ruttenberg 42
Homemaker’s Contribution — Polsky 12
Interest — Callahan 90, Polsky 12
Marital — Schmitt 91
Nonmarital — Schmitt 91
Pensions and Profit-Sharing — Winter 14
Presumptions — Schmitt 91
QDRO - Kennedy 55
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QILDRO - Winter 14
Real Estate — Schmitt 91

STATUTES, RULES & CONSTITUTIONS CONSTRUED

ADOPTION ACT - 750 ILCS 50/:

1(D)(m) — In Re PM.C & J.L.C. 45

8(b) — In Re Petition of D.D.D & S.P 63

8(b)(1)(B)(v) — In the Matter of the Petition of A.F. to Adopt J.A.A 29

CODE OF CIVIL PROCEDURE - 735 ILCS 5/
2-1303 - Callahan 90

12-108(a) — Davenport 50

12-109(b) — Callahan 90

13-218 — Davenport 50

CODE OF CRIMINAL PROCEDURE OF 1963 - 725 ILCS 5/:
12-704 — Eberhardt 6

12-901 — Belcher 26

116-2 — People v. Leezer 38

CRIMINAL CODE - 720 ILCS 5/:
12-3.2(a)(2) — People v. Bassette 85
12-7.3(a) — Curtis v. Montgomery 22
12-7.3(d)3 - Curtis v. Montgomery 22
12-30 — People v. Leezer 38

DISSOLUTION ACT (ILLINOIS MARRIAGE AND DISSOLUTION OF
MARRIAGE ACT) - 750 ILCS 5/

401(b) — Awan 46

403(b) — Alhilou 23

501(c-1) — Doyle 19

502(a) — Al-Hawarey 48

502(f) - Gosney 41

503(a) — Schmitt 91

503(a)(8) — Schmitt 91

503(b) — Schmitt 91

503(b) (1) — Belcher 26

503(d) — Nutty 11, Polsky 12

504 — Awan 46, Dvorok 817, Patterson 73, Walker 76

504(a) - Marsden 70

505 — Davenport 50, Nutty 11, Stomberg 68

505(a) (3) — Dean 31, Eberhardt 6, Stomberg 68

505.2 — Gosney 41

506 — Doyle 19, Gosney 41

506(a)(2) — Eckert 64

506 (b) — Greco 19

508(a) — Awan 46

508(b) — Harrison 32

510(a) — Gosney 41, Marsden 70

510(a-5) - Patterson 73

513(a)(2) — Marsden 70

513(b) — Marsden 70

601 — Carrell 21

601 (b)(2) - Carrell 21

601 (b)(4) — Carrell 21

602.1 — Al-Hawarey 48, Troue 52

604.5 — Eckert 64

607(a) — Lipski 66

609 — Bunting 4, Kayser 34

610(c) — Harrison 32

ILLINOIS DOMESTIC VIOLENCE ACT OF 1986 — 750 ILCS 60/
102(4) — People v. Leezer 38

102(6) — People v. Leezer 38

214(b)(3) — People v. Leezer 38

JUNE 2009

214(c) — Bauer 86
214(c)(3) — Bauer 86
305 — Lacey 40

ILLINOIS PARENTAGE ACT OF 1984 - 750 ILCS 45/:
5(b) — In Re Petition of D.D.D & S.P 63

6(d) — In Re Petition of D.D.D & S.P 63

7 - Rolseth 79

FORCIBLE ENTRY AND DETAINER STATUTE - 735 ILCS 5/:
9-101 — Ewing 54

ILLINOIS SUPREME COURT RULES - 134 I1l. 2d R. and 155 11l. 2d R
and 166 I11. 2d R/:

183 — Coulson 37

213(b) — Eberhardt 6

216 — Coulson 37

216(a) — Coulson 37

296 — Reimer 35

303 - Valkunias 3

303 (a)(1) - Valkunias 3

304(a) - Valkunias 3

367(e) - Valkunias 3

402 — People v Bessette 85

402A - People v Bessette 85

402A(c) — People v Bessette 85

ILLINOIS UNIFORM PREMARITAL AGREEMENT ACT - 750 ILCS
10/:
4(b) — Best 18

INTERSTATE COMPACT ON PLACEMENT OF CHILDREN ACT 45
ILCS/:
1 = The Cradle Society 61

JUVENILE COURT ACT OF 1987 - 705 ILCS 405/:
1-3(4.05) d - In Re BB. & A.T 1

1-3(4.05) g—In Re BB. & A.T 1

2-3(2)(v) - In Re B.H. 70

MENTAL HEALTH & DEVELOPEMENTAL DISABILITIES CONFI-
DENTIALITY ACT - 740 ILCS 110/:
15 - Quigg 51

UNIFORM CHILD CUSTODY JURISDICTION AND ENFORCEMENT
ACT -750 ILCS 36/
101 et seq — In Re Baby Girl F.7

UNITED STATES CODE - BANKRUPTCY ACT - 11 U.S.C./:
101 (14A) — Belcher 26

523 (a)(5) - Belcher 26

541 — Belcher 26

UNITED STATES CODE - (ERISA) EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT
INCOME SECURITY ACT -29 U.S.C./:

1056 — Kennedy 55

1104(a)(1)(D) — Kennedy 55

UNITED STATES CODE - PARENTAL KIDNAPPING PREVENTION
ACT -28 U.S.C./:
1738(a) — In Re Baby Girl F.7

UNITED STATES CODE - (RICO) RACKETEERING INFLUENCED

AND CORRUPT ORGANIZATIONS ACT - 18 U.S.C./:
1962 — Ruttenberg 42
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ILLINOIS FAMILY LAW STATUTES

The Illinois Family Law Statutes, as amended to date, includes the Illinois Marriage and
Dissolution of Marriage Act - Uniform Child Custody Jurisdiction and Enforcement Act -
Child Abduction - Full Faith and Credit Given to Child Custody Determinations and Child
Support Orders - Expedited Child Support Act of 1990 - Uniform Interstate Family Support
Act - Income Withholding for Support Act - “Long Arm Statute” - [llinois Domestic Violence
Act of 1986 - Gender Violence Act - Civil No-Contact Order Act - Emancipation of Mature
Minors Act - [llinois Parentage Act of 1984 - The Illinois Parentage Act - The Illinois Uniform
Premarital Agreement Act - Rights of Married Persons Act - Adoption Act - Contest of
Adoptions Act - Instruments Regarding Adopted Children Act - Adoption Compensation
Prohibition Act - Interstate Compact on the Placement of Children Act - Interstate Compact
on Adoption Act - Alienation of Affections Act - Breach of Promise Act - Criminal
Conversation Act - Marriage, Dissolution, and Invalidity Records Act - Domestic Violence
Shelters Act - Gestational Surrogacy Act - Child Support Payment Act.

The $50.00 price includes the statutes and update service for all future revisions enacted in
2008. Prices good to August 1, 2009.

To subscribe send your check for $50.00 (include your name and address).
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